
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




Minutes
Board of Commissioners


 August 4, 2010
 3:30 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Wednesday, August 4, 2010, at 3:30
p.m. in the Commissioners’ Conference Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue,
Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Jack Smith, Chairman
Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn


Commissioners Absent: Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
____________________________________________________________________________________________


Chairman Smith called the meeting to order.


ACCEPTANCE Of AGENDA:  Commissioner Hearn made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.  Commissioner
Frady seconded the motion.  Chairman Smith requested to add a special presentation by Superior Court Clerk Sheila
Studdard to be first on the agenda.  Commissioner Hearn made a motion to accept the amended motion to include the
special presentation on the agenda.  Commissioner Frady seconded the amended  motion.  The motion carried 3-0.
Commissioner Horgan and Commissioner Maxwell were absent.  


SPECIAL PRESENTATION:  
Superior Court Clerk Sheila Studdard along with Tax Commissioner George Wingo, Probate Judge Ann Jackson,
Executive Director of COAG Suzanne Cross, Executive Director of ACCG Ross King recognized Melanie Rowe as the
recipient of the $1,000 Constitutional Officers’ Association of Georgia, Inc. Scholarship Program.  This award goes to
a high school senior submitting a 1,000 word essay on the subject of “How Do the Constitutional Officers in my County
Affect My Life?”. 



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 4, 2010


Page 2


OLD BUSINESS:
A. PRESENTATION OF THE MONTHLY UPDATE ON THE COUNTY’S 2010 TRANSPORTATION WORK PLAN


BY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR PHIL MALLON:


Public Works Director Phil Mallon updated the Board on the County’s 2010 transportation work plan.  A copy of the
agenda request and handout, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.
He remarked that progress was going well on Snead Road and paving of the entire road should be completed by the
end of August.  He also commented on the work being done on Trickum Creek Road, Buckeye Road, Kelly Road,
Swanson Road and Mask Road.  He commended the road crew for all of their hard work during these long hot summer
days.  He further commented that it was his goal for right-of-way mowing of the arterials four times each year as well
as the collector and local roads three times per year.   


Commissioner Hearn asked for the status of the purchase of additional mowing equipment that had been approved in
the budget.  Mr. Mallon replied that this had been put out for bid .  He said the Road Department staff had spent a lot
of time researching and talking with several suppliers to determine the equipment that was needed.  


Mr. Mallon commented on gravel road maintenance and said the soil stabilization application was started in July.  He
said this would continue through August and his department had received positive citizen feedback on this process.  


Mr. Mallon remarked on Phase I of the West Fayetteville Bypass and noted that paving was being done between S.R.
54 and Lester Road.  He said the goal was to have the Bypass open to traffic either at the end of the day on Friday,
August 6  or more likely on Monday, August 9 .  He said the goals for July were accomplished and the storm pipe workth th


was done, the curb and gutters completed and paving would be completed this week.  


Chairman Smith requested that the following items under New Business be discussed in a different order based on time
conflicts with several department heads needing to meet several appointments.  He asked that item “G” be discussed
first under New Business.  


NEW BUSINESS:
G.         DISCUSSION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE, IN ITS


ENTIRETY, AND ITS SUBSEQUENT ADOPTION AS CHAPTER 20 OF THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE AND
DISCUSSION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT
AND MAP:


Director of Community Development Pete Frisina reviewed some of the proposed amendments to the Fayette County
Zoning Ordinance.  He said staff had been working with the Planning Commission as well as citizens on amendments
to the zoning ordinance for approximately a year and a half. He presented the Board with a summary of the proposed
amendments to the zoning ordinance. A copy of the agenda request and backup information, identified as “Attachment
No. 2", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He said it was staff’s intent to have the Fayette County
Zoning Ordinance adopted by the end of this year.  He noted that new items had been added under accessory structures
including solar panels and wind turbines.  He said extensive work had been done on telecommunications and towers
section of the ordinance.          


Chairman Smith commented that the M-1 zoning category and the three areas that currently have these type of
developments already in place.  Mr. Frisina remarked that the three areas that actually have these sort of developments
in place were the S.R. 85 North area, the industrial area of S.R. 314 and Bethea Road and the mixed
industrial/commercial area located East of town.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 4, 2010


Page 3


Mr. Frisina said staff would like to take these proposed amendments and proceed.  He said he would be available to
meet with each Commissioner on any questions they might have and would discuss it further at the Board’s workshop
meeting on September 1 .  He said it was staff’s goal to have this adopted by the end of the year so that it could best


codified through Municipal Code.  


D.        PRESENTATION BY STAFF ON “AN INTRODUCTION TO MODERN ROUNDABOUTS”:


Public Works Director Phil Mallon discussed modern roundabouts and how they fit into the community road systems.
He presented a power point presentation on modern roundabouts.  A copy of the agenda request and presentation,
identified as “Attachment No.  3", follows these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He said he would provide
the Board with more detailed information in the near future.  


Commissioner Hearn expressed concern in high traffic areas where there is a 35 m.p.h. to 40 m.p.h. speed limit.  He
questioned what could be done if a roundabout reached over capacity and felt there would have to be options for a right
turn lane.  


Chairman Smith said he agreed with Commissioner Hearn on the issue of expandibility of the roundabout due to growth.
        
Mr. Mallon remarked that he was just presenting this item to the Board for informational purposes and if there was any
interest by the Board, he would be glad to discuss it further.  The Board thanked Mr. Mallon for his presentation.  


B. DISCUSSION OF A FIFTH JUDGESHIP FOR THE GRIFFIN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT:


Administrator for the Griffin Judicial Circuit Will Simmons discussed this item with the Board and the criteria used for an
additional judgeship for a particular circuit.  He noted that the last judicial study done by the State was in 2007.  He said
in 2007 this circuit was over the threshold that the judicial council uses to make a determination.  A copy of the agenda
request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follows these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He
pointed out that the Legislature makes the decision on judgeships for all courts.  The costs involved for potential staffing,
salaries, and office space were also discussed.  


Commissioner Hearn asked how much this would cost Fayette County and Chairman Smith replied 10%.  County
Administrator Jack Krakeel interjected that each Superior Court Judge has his own courtroom and there could be
significant capital costs associated with the potential of constructing a new courtroom, space for court staff in addition
to the normal percentage of a supplement that the County was required to contribute for that particular individual position.
He pointed out that the County currently pays 50% of the operating costs of the circuit based on population and case
files.  


C. PRESENTATION BY CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER MARY HOLLAND ON STAFF’S FORECAST REGARDING
2010 TAX MILLAGE RATES WHICH ARE SCHEDULED TO BE ADOPTED IN AUGUST:


Chief Finance Officer Mary Holland reviewed staff’s forecast for the 2010 tax millage rates.  A copy of the agenda
request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  She
said the Board would be considering adoption at its August 26  meeting and the recommended millage rate must beth


published in the newspaper one week prior to the meeting when the Board actually votes for adoption of the millage rate.
She said during the past couple of weeks the Tax Commissioner George Wingo had provided her with the final digest
numbers and with that there had been some slight changes which impacted the numbers.   She said she also wanted
to bring to the Board’s attention the fact that over the last three years the property tax receivables for Fayette County







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 4, 2010


Page 4


had actually doubled.  She said this meant that this was  revenue that was not available for the County to actually utilize
and would be deferred revenue.  She said due to the current state of the economy there could be cases where some
of these receivables might have to be written off.  She also stated that the County was seeing a much lower collection
rate than it had seen in the past.  She said staff was requesting some input from the Board as to whether there was any
particular method that the Board would like staff to consider going forward with this year’s millage rate recommendation.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that staff was providing the Board with this information to give the Board
enough time to make a decision.  Ms. Holland said if the Board needed additional information, she would be glad to
provide that as well.  


F.           STAFF WILL PRESENT AMENDMENTS TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE, CHAPTER 8 DEVELOPMENT
REGULATIONS, ARTICLE I, III, IV AND VIII:


Director of Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell discussed the amendments to the Fayette County code, Chapter
8 Development Regulations, Article I, III, IV and VIII with the Board.  A copy of the agenda request and backup, identified
as “Attachment No. 6", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  She asked for consideration for staff
to draft an ordinance reflecting these recommended amendments and present same to the Board for consideration in
the near future and the Board agreed for staff to proceed.  


Chairman Smith asked if there were any significant revisions or just housekeeping and Ms. Birrell replied that these
revisions were all housekeeping items.  


There were no objections by the Board for staff to proceed with the amendments.  Ms. Birrell remarked and there would
still be time for the Board to ask questions and get clarification if needed before final adoption.   


H.        DISCUSSION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE, CHAPTER 5, SECTION
5-212 TO INCLUDE RESIDENTIAL ROOFING REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENT PERMITS INCLUDING AN
ASSOCIATED PERMIT FEE; AND DISCUSSION OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO INCREASE THE
CURRENT FEE FOR COMMERCIAL ROOFING/REPAIR PERMITS:


Director of Permits and Inspections Joe Scarborough discussed the proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code,
Chapter 5, Section 5-212 to include residential roofing repairs and replacement permits including an associated permit
fee.  A copy of the agenda request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof. He said he was bringing this before the Board in response to an ongoing number of complaints
from citizens as a result of last year’s hail storm.  


After a brief discussion, County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that there was the capability through the County’s
existing Emergency Management ordinances and programs to institute some local controls during emergency events
to help protect citizens against unscrupulous contractors.  The Board agreed and suggested that these types of issues
go through Emergency Management for solution.  


Director of Permits and Inspections Joe Scarborough asked for the Board’s consideration to revise the current $50 fee
for a commercial roofing repair or replacement to a fee which allows his department to recover its costs.  He noted
currently this was required for commercial but not residential.  County Administrator Jack Krakeel said he would be glad
to work with Mr. Scarborough to recommend an appropriate fee schedule.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 4, 2010


Page 5


E.         DISCUSSION OF GRAVEL ROAD OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE WITHIN FAYETTE COUNTY AND
CONSIDERATION OF IMPROVEMENT OPTIONS AND PRIORITIZATION:


Public Works Director Phil Mallon discussed gravel road operation and maintenance within Fayette County and also
improvement options and prioritization.  A copy of the agenda request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 8",
follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  He reviewed the summary of C.I.P. projects for paving gravel
roads and the amount of money that is scheduled over the next five years.  He pointed out that the County maintains
over 50 miles of gravel roads within unincorporated Fayette County.  He remarked that currently the County does
proactive scraping and blade program as well as dust control using calcium chloride.  He said the application of calcium
chloride on dirt roads has been very well received by citizens living on those roads.  He said the County was also using
a different product this year that was dust suppression and soil stabilization.  He noted that this product was more
expensive but has benefits that the calcium chloride does not.  He said the manufacturer claims that the product stays
in the road and over a period of a few years actually makes the road stronger and more resistant to erosion and rutting.
He remarked that his department has numerous petitions signed by citizens on some of the dirt roads requesting their
road to be paved but noted that a lot of these are old and some not dated.  


Chairman Smith said he recalled the Board adopting criteria that in effect put a time limit on submission of a petition as
well as requiring a certain percentage of homeowners living on a particular dirt road to sign said petition.  Mr. Mallon
replied there was a time limit but the time limit was on the County.  He said once a petition was submitted to the County,
the County would have 90 days to prepare a preliminary cost estimate.  He noted that this time limit had not been met.


Mr. Mallon remarked that the dirt roads listed in the C.I.P. for paving were Snead Road which is nearing completion,
Trickum Creek Road, Buckeye Road, Kelly Road, Swanson Road and Mask Road.  He questioned leaving these roads
in the C.I.P. for paving if there might be other roads that the Board members receive complaints on.  He said his
department really did not receive many complaints on the current roads in the C.I.P.  He said in looking at the petitions
per the new policy, staff would recommend the top three roads to be paved as Trickum Creek Road, Mask Road and
Simms Road.  He said he was presenting this to the Board in order to get input as to what work should be done after
Snead Road and what type of information the Board would want from staff.  


Commissioner Hearn suggested taking the top three roads on the list and sending a questionnaire to the residents along
those roads and ask those homeowners if they would be willing to donate their portion of the right-of-way for a specific
road to be paved.  


Chairman Smith said this would only circumvent the County’s current procedure which allows the citizens to petition the
County to have a road paved and the County beginning the process.  


Mr. Mallon said he believed that Simms Road met the 80% requirement but he would have to check on the files for the
other unpaved roads.  He asked if the C.I.P. was set or would the Board be willing to reallocate the $1.8 million   


Chairman Smith replied that he would be willing to reallocate it based upon the needs.  He said he did not believe the
County should implement its own petition process but he had no objection to the County sending a questionnaire to the
homeowners to determine if there was interest to have their road paved.  He said the homeowners could also be made
aware of the fact that the County was trying to set a priority schedule for paving dirt roads and in that priority schedule
there were three different treatments including (1) scraping, (2) dust control that would stabilize the road bed and (3)
pave the road.  He said this would allow the County to know exactly how homeowners feel about their dirt road.  He felt
staff should spend some time determining prioritization and he did not see a correlation between the money in the C.I.P.
and the need to pave unless that need is established.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 4, 2010


Page 6


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES APPLICATION FOR ELIGIBILITY: County Administrator
Jack Krakeel asked for the Board’s consideration to authorize the Chairman to execute the Georgia Department of
Administrative Services Application for Eligibility to access surplus property.  He said this would allow a designation of
certified individuals who would have authorization to look at the surplus property that was available to determine if any
of the surplus property might be suitable for utilization by the County.  He said there would be no cost to the County. 


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to approve staff’s request to authorize the Chairman to execute the Georgia
Department of Administrative Services application for eligibility to access surplus property that might be available for
utilization by the county.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 3-0.  Commissioner Horgan
and Commissioner Maxwell were absent.  A copy of the application, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.    


MERITAIN HEALTH’S FEDERAL EARLY RETIREE  REINSURANCE PROGRAM:   County Administrator Jack Krakeel
asked for the Board’s consideration to authorize the Chairman to execute a letter requesting Meritain Health to assist
the County in submitting an application to the Federal government to receive reimbursements under the Early Retiree
Reinsurance Program.  He explained that the program provides direct reimbursement to local governments accepted
into the program for medical claim expenses incurred by early retirees once the expenditures have exceeded $15,000
and limits the reimbursement up to $90,000.  


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to approve staff’s request to authorize the Chairman to execute an Agreement
requesting Meritain Health to assist the County in submitting an application to the Federal Government to receive
reimbursement under the early retiree reinsurance program.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion
carried 3-0.  Commissioner Horgan and Commissioner Maxwell were absent.  A copy of the Agreement, identified as
“Attachment No. 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.    


EXCAVATOR AT PUBLIC WORKS NEEDS TRANSMISSION WORK:  County Administrator Jack Krakeel asked for
the Board’s consideration to approve work to be done as soon as possible on an excavator at Public Works that needs
transmission work.  A copy of the estimate from Yancey Brothers, identified as “Attachment No.  11", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  He said the work would be performed by Yancey Brothers in the amount
of $22,220.07. 


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to approve repairs to be done immediately by Yancey Brothers in the amount of
$22,220.07 on an excavator at Public Works needing transmission work.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.
The motion carried 3-0.  Commissioner Horgan and Commissioner Maxwell were absent.  


RENEWAL OF THE E-911 INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT: County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that
there had been several discussions during the last year regarding the renewal of the E-911 Intergovernmental
Agreement between the County and its municipalities. He said the cities would like to have discussion about  establishing
a separate E-911 tax district County-wide to fund the portion of the operating budget that is not funded by user fees.
He said a decision would have to be made by October.  He said he was just briefing the Board on this issue and he
would place it on a tickler and bring it back to the Board in the near future for consideration.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
None.







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 4, 2010


Page 7


STAFF REPORTS:
None.


BOARD REPORTS:
None.


EXECUTIVE SESSION: County Administrator Jack Krakeel requested an Executive Session to discuss real estate
acquisition.  


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss real estate acquisition. Commissioner
Frady seconded the motion.  The motion carried 3-0.  Commissioner Horgan and Commissioner Maxwell were absent.


Chairman Smith called the meeting back to open session and remarked that real estate acquisition was discussed in
Executive Session.  


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to authorize the Chairman to execute the Executive Session Affidavit affirming that
real estate acquisition was discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion.  The motion
carried 3-0.  Commissioner Horgan and Commissioner Maxwell were absent.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit,
identified as “Attachment No. 12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR JACK KRAKEEL  -  PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE CORNER OF LEES MILL ROAD
AND S.R. 92: County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that the County had received a request regarding a parcel
of property consisting of 1/3 acre owned by the County at the corner of Lees Mill Road and S.R. 92.  He said this property
was located directly across the street from the water tank site on Lees Mill Road.  He asked the Board if there was any
interest in selling this property.  


There was a consensus of the Board that there was no interest in selling this property.  


CHAIRMAN SMITH   -  VEHICLE ALLOWANCE FOR COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR: Chairman Smith stated that County
Administrator Jack Krakeel’s contract provides a vehicle for him to drive and he had relinquished said vehicle for use
in another department where a vehicle was permanently taken out of service.  He said in lieu of using the vehicle
replacement fund to purchase another vehicle, Mr. Krakeel was agreeable to accept a car allowance.  He noted that staff
had calculated $600 per month and as an equivalent amount to the County’s current cost for providing said vehicle and
he asked for the Board’s approval to authorize $600 per month to cover a vehicle, gas, oil and insurance.  He said there
would be no additional compensation for vehicle use including trips to government functions outside of the County and
State.  He asked for consideration by the Board to determine the amount for the vehicle allowance and approve this
allowance to be paid to County Administrator Jack Krakeel on a monthly basis effective July 1  which was the date hest


had relinquished the County vehicle.    







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 4, 2010


Page 8


Commissioner Frady made a motion to approve the request to pay County Administrator Jack Krakeel $600 per month
for a vehicle allowance.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 3-0.  Commissioner Horgan
and Commissioner Maxwell were absent.  


ADJOURNMENT:   Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Chairman Smith adjourned the meeting at
6:46 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                          Jack R.  Smith, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 9  day of September, 2010.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








Minutes
Board of Commissioners


August 26, 2010
7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at  www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on Thursday, August 26, 2010, at 7:00
p.m. in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville,
Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn
Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


Commissioner Absent: Jack Smith, Chairman


Staff Present: Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney
Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant


 Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk
______________________________________________________________________________________________


Vice Chairman Herb Frady called the meeting to order.  He remarked that Jack Smith would be absent from the meeting
due to a death in his family.


Commissioner Hearn offered the Invocation.  
Commissioner Maxwell led the Pledge of Allegiance.  


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:
A. PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING SEPTEMBER  6, 2010 AS “MARQUIS DE LAFAYETTE DAY IN FAYETTE


COUNTY”:


County Administrator Jack Krakeel read and the Board presented a Proclamation recognizing September 6, 2010 as
“Marquis de Lafayette Day in Fayette County” to members of the James Waldrop Chapter of the National Society of the
Daughters of the American Revolution.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 1", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  



http://www.fayettecountyga.gov





Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 26, 2010


Page 2


B. PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING SEPTEMBER 17-23, 2010 AS “CONSTITUTION WEEK IN FAYETTE
COUNTY”:


County Administrator Jack Krakeel read and the Board presented a Proclamation recognizing September 17-23, 2010
as “Constitution Week in Fayette County” to members of the James Waldrop Chapter of the National Society of the
Daughters of the American Revolution.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No.  2", follows
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


C. PRESENTATION OF MASTER CERTIFIED EMERGENCY MANAGER CERTIFICATES TO CAPTAIN PETE
NELMS, EMA COORDINATOR AND MR. GEORGE KNIGHT, RESERVE UNIT MEMBER ASSIGNED TO THE
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY:


Public Safety Director Allen McCullough, GEMA/Homeland Security Director Charley English, and Area Field Coordinator
for Georgia Emergency Management Sherri Russo presented Master Certified Emergency Manager Certificates to
Captain Pete Nelms and Reserve Unit Member George Knight for completing the requirements necessary to accomplish
this designation.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 3", follow these minutes and are made
an official part hereof.    


The Board commended Captain Nelms and Reserve Unit Member George Knight for all of their efforts in completing the
requirements necessary for this certification.  Vice Chairman Frady remarked that George Knight was a volunteer and
he had accomplished all of the requirements on his own time and he commended him for his efforts.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING:
D. CONSIDERATION TO ACCEPT THE UPDATED 2010 FAYETTE COUNTY HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN AS


REQUIRED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY’S DISASTER MITIGATION ACT
OF 2000 AND AUTHORIZATION FOR THE CHAIRMAN TO EXECUTE RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE
ADOPTION:


Public Safety Director Allen McCullough provided the Board with an overview of the updated 2010 Fayette County
Hazard Mitigation Plan and asked for the Board’s consideration to approve the Plan as required by the Federal
Emergency Management Agency’s Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and authorization for the Vice Chairman to execute
the Resolution authorizing the adoption.  


Vice Chairman Frady remarked since this was a public hearing anyone wishing to speak in favor or against this item
could do so at this time.  There was no public comment.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the updated 2010 Fayette County Hazard Mitigation Plan required by
the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and authorization for the Vice Chairman
to execute the Resolution affecting the adoption.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.
Chairman Smith was absent.  A copy of the request and the Resolution, identified as “Attachment No. 4", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.    


PUBLIC COMMENT:
BOB ROSS:   Bob Ross, 202 Bridge Point, Peachtree City commented on the West Fayetteville Bypass project.  He
remarked that it had been five weeks since Fayette County citizens condemned  the West Fayetteville Bypass projects
II and III and there was still no response by this Board on what the majority of Fayette County voters want.  He presented







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 26, 2010


Page 3


the Board with a handout of his comments.  A copy of the handout, identified as “Attachment No. 5", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


MARTHA NOLAN:  Martha Nolan, 270 Flat Creek Trail, Fayetteville urged the Board not to create any additional taxes
in next year’s budget.  She urged the Board to have more cuts in the County’s budget and suggested the Board look at
the number of Crown Victorias and F-150 County vehicles in the parking lot.  


CONSENT AGENDA:   Commissioner Maxwell remarked that he and Commissioner Horgan were absent for the August
4  Board meeting and could not vote for consent agenda item no. 10.  Commissioner Hearn made a motion to tableth


consent item no. 10 regarding approval of the August 4  Board of Commissioners’ meeting minutes to the Septemberth


9  Board meeting for consideration.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Chairmanth


Smith was absent.  Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve consent agenda item nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8,
9, and 11.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Chairman Smith was absent.  


JAIL EXERCISE YARD - VERTICAL EARTH AWARDED BID:
1. Approval of staff's recommendation to award bid for the repair of the Jail exercise yard to Vertical Earth in the


amount of $89,050.00. A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 6", follow these minutes
and are made an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - OVERTIME BUDGET ACCOUNT AMENDED:
2. Approval of Sheriff’s Office request to amend the 2010 Overtime Budget Account for the Sheriff’s Office


Criminal Investigations Division by $3,977.15 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various
Federal Agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 7", follows these minutes and is made
an official part hereof.  


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - OVERTIME BUDGET ACCOUNT AMENDED:
3. Approval of staff’s request to amend the FY2011 Overtime Budget Account for the Sheriff’s Office Criminal


Investigations Division by $954.77 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal
Agencies.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 8", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE BUDGET AMENDED:
4. Approval of Sheriff’s Office request to amend the FY2011 Software Maintenance Budget Account for the


Sheriff’s Office Criminal Investigations Division by $1,197.58 for reimbursement of monies from NEC.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 9", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PARKS AND RECREATION DEPT. - CHASE PAYMENTECH AGREEMENT:
5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with Chase Paymentech to provide Fayette


County with electronic payment processing services for the Parks and Recreation Department and authorization
for the Chairman to execute this agreement pending the County Attorney’s approval.  A copy of the request and
the Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 10", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


SHERIFF’S OFFICE - SOUTH WESTERN COMMUNICATIONS AGREEMENT FOR SECURITY SYSTEMS:
6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to enter into an agreement with South Western Communications (SWC)


to align the existing service contracts for security systems for Sheriff’s Buildings “A” and “B” to coincide with
Fayette County’s fiscal year and authorization for the Chairman to execute this agreement pending the County







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 26, 2010


Page 4


Attorney’s approval.  A copy of the request and Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 11", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


RECREATION DEPT. - ALL PRO CONTRACTORS, INC. AWARDED ELECTRICAL WORK AT MCCURRY PARK
SOFTBALL COMPLEX:
7. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award electrical work at McCurry Park Softball Complex to All Pro


Contractors, Inc. at a total cost of $7,630.00 utilizing Contingency Funds for repairs and upgrades needed due
to a lightning strike.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No. 12", follows these minutes and is
made an official part hereof.  


ELECTIONS OFFICE - PURCHASE OF SCANNING EQUIPMENT AND SOFTWARE:
8. Approval of staff’s request for a budget amendment to transfer $7,661 from the FY2010 Elections and Voter


Registration Operating Budget Account to a project account for the purchase of scanning equipment and
software.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment No.  13", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.  


ELECTIONS OFFICE - THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN FAYETTE
COUNTY AND THE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR THE ADDITION OF BAR CODE SCANNERS:
9. Approval of staff’s recommendation that the County enter into the “Third Amendment to the Intergovernmental


Agreement between Fayette County and the Secretary of State’s Office which will provide for the addition of
bar code scanners which will expedite the voting process.  A copy of the request and the Intergovernmental
Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 14", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


MINUTES:
10. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on August 4, 2010.


Tabled to the September 9, 2010 Board of Commissioners meeting for consideration.


MINUTES:
11. Approval of minutes for Board of Commissioners’ meeting held on August 12, 2010.


OLD BUSINESS:
E.           CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 2010-08 REGARDING PROPOSED AMENDMENTS


TO THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE, CHAPTER 8, DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS, BY AMENDING
ARTICLES I, III, IV AND XIV:


Director of Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell discussed the proposed Amendments to the Fayette County Code,
Chapter 8, Development Regulations, by amending Articles I, III, IV and XIV.  She asked for the Board’s consideration
to adopt Ordinance No. 2010-08 reflecting these proposed amendments.
  
Commissioner Horgan made a motion to adopt Ordinance No. 2010-08 regarding proposed amendments to the Fayette
County Code, Chapter 8, Development Regulations, by amending Article I, III, IV and XIV.  Commissioner Hearn
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0. A copy of the request, backup and Ordinance No. 2010-08 identified as
“Attachment No. 15", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  Chairman Smith was absent.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 26, 2010


Page 5


NEW BUSINESS:
F.         CONSIDERATION OF A REQUEST FROM JUDGE FLETCHER SAMS THAT HIS SECRETARY BE ALLOWED


TO CONTINUE AS A COUNTY EMPLOYEE WHILE SERVING AS SECRETARY IN HIS NEW ROLE AS
SUPERIOR COURT JUDGE:


County Administrator Jack Krakeel asked for the Board’s consideration to approve a request from Judge Fletcher Sams
that his secretary Melanie Nichols be allowed to continue as a County employee while serving as secretary in his new
role as Superior Court Judge.  He noted that there was a reimbursement process available from the State to the County
for the salary for that position.  He remarked that Ms. Nichols would be eligible for that reimbursement but would leave
a differential of approximately $12,828.51 that would have to be funded from County funds.    


Commissioner Maxwell made a motion to approve the request from Judge Fletcher Sams for his secretary Melanie
Nichols to be allowed to continue as a County Employee while serving as secretary to Judge Sams in his new role as
Superior Court Judge and to coordinate her benefits with the State regarding any reimbursement and to include any
subsequent issues that might be involved in this transition.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion
carried 4-0.  Chairman Smith was absent.  A copy of the request and backup, identified as “Attachment No. 16", follow
these minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


G.         CONSIDERATION OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE FOR
CONSTRUCTION OF A TRANSPORTATION SPLOST PROJECT KNOWN AS THE LAFAYETTE
EXTENSION/SIGNAL PROJECT:


County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that the City of Fayetteville was asking for consideration by the County to
assist in two projects including the extension of  Lafayette Avenue and the redesign of the intersection of S.R. 92 and
S.R. 85 and Hood Avenue.  He said the Intergovernmental Agreement before the Board tonight was specific to the
Lafayette extension/signal project in the amount of $491,588.36 and that this project was approved to be funded by 2004
S.P.L.O.S.T. proceeds (Project R-14 in the 2004 Transportation Plan). He asked for the Board’s consideration to approve
this Agreement and also authorization for staff to proceed with further exploration and cost refinement for the project at
S.R. 92 and S.R. 85.  He noted that there were some minor modifications to the Agreement before the Board tonight but
he would meet with County Attorney Scott Bennett to draft a final document for the Chairman’s signature.  He said the
City of Fayetteville was in agreement with the changes. 


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville for
construction of a transportation S.P.L.O.S.T. project known as the Lafayette Extension/Signal Project including the
changes as discussed.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Chairman Smith was
absent.  A copy of the request and the Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 17", follow these
minutes and are made an official part hereof.  


H.         CONSIDERATION OF STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION THAT THE COUNTY ENTER INTO AN ANNUAL
“AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GRIFFIN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT
PUBLIC DEFENDER’S OFFICE IN FAYETTE COUNTY”:


County Administrator Jack Krakeel asked for the Board’s consideration to approve staff’s recommendation that the
County enter into an annual “Agreement for Indigent Defense Services provided by the Griffin Judicial Circuit Public
Defender’s Office in Fayette County”.  He remarked that year before last the Board had cut the budget by 4%.  He said
this year’s original request was for an increase but had been negotiated back to a recommended level of funding held
at the same level as the prior fiscal year in the amount of $484,512 actually was less than what the County was paying







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 26, 2010


Page 6


three years ago.  He said he had reviewed the contract with the County Attorney Scott Bennett as well as the appointed
Interim Administrator Allen Adams for the Griffin Judicial Circuit and they recommended approval.    


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation that the County enter into an annual
“Agreement for Indigent Defense Services provided by the Griffin Judicial Circuit Public Defender’s Office in Fayette
County”.  Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Chairman Smith was absent.  A copy
of the request and Agreement, identified as “Attachment No. 18, follow these minutes and are made an official part
hereof.  


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:
None.


ATTORNEY’S REPORT:
SECOND AMENDMENT TO ANTENNA SITE LEASE WITH PINNACLE TOWERS LLC: County Attorney Scott Bennett
asked for the Board’s consideration to approve the Second Amendment to the Antenna Site Lease between Fayette
County and Pinnacle Towers LLC.  He noted the original lease was entered into on January 1, 2000.  He noted that this
amendment would extend the lease for three five year terms or a total of fifteen (15) years to December 31, 2024.


County Administrator Jack Krakeel remarked that this was a financially good situation for the County.  He pointed out
that this tower was constructed in 1985 and during the course of the last twenty-five years the County had generated
anywhere from $35,000 to $50,000 annually in lease fee revenues.  He said the original construction cost of the tower
was $150,000.  County Attorney Scott Bennett remarked that the County was entitled to half of the revenue that was
generated.  He said the tenant would pay for the maintenance costs.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to approve the Second Amendment to Antenna Site Lease with Pinnacle Towers
LLC for three five year terms or a period of 15 years for authorization for Vice Chairman Frady to execute said Lease.
Commissioner Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Chairman Smith was absent.  A copy of the Second
Amendment to the Antenna Site Lease with Pinnacle Towers LLC, identified as “Attachment No. 19", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


STAFF REPORTS:
None.


BOARD REPORTS: Commissioner Maxwell said he would like to discuss the issue of condemned properties in Fayette
County with the Director of Permits and Inspections Joe Scarborough at the Board’s next Wednesday Workshop meeting
on September 1 .  He said he had received a call from a constituent on this issue and he told her that he would addressst


it at the workshop meeting.  He requested this item to be added to that agenda for discussion.  


EXECUTIVE SESSION: County Attorney Scott Bennett requested an Executive Session to discuss real estate
acquisition.  


Commissioner Horgan made a motion to adjourn to Executive Session to discuss real estate acquisition.  Commissioner
Hearn seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-0.  Chairman Smith was absent.


Vice Chairman Frady adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened the meeting to open session.  He remarked that
real estate acquisition had been discussed in Executive Session.  







Board of Commissioners Minutes


August 26, 2010


Page 7


Commissioner Hearn made a motion to authorize the Vice Chairman to execute the Executive Session Affidavit affirming
that real estate acquisition was discussed in Executive Session.  Commissioner Horgan seconded the motion.  The
motion carried 4-0.  Chairman Smith was absent.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment
No.  20", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.  


ADJOURNMENT:    Hearing no further business to come before the Board, Vice Chairman Frady adjourned the meeting
at  8:58 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk                      Herbert E. Frady, Vice Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 9  day of September, 2010.th


___________________________________
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


September 9, 2010
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda.


PRESENTATION/RECOGNITION:


A. Proclamation recognizing September 15, 2010 as “Honor Flight Fayette
Day”.


B. Recognition of the Fayette County 4-H Shooting Sports members and
coaches and recognition for their many accomplishments during the
past year, including winning the State Academics, Integrity, and
Marksmanship (AIM) Trap Shoot.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of Human Resources’ request to amend the Human
Resources FY2010 Technical Services Budget Account by $3,000 to
reflect a contribution from GEBCorp to assist the County with a
computer data interface project.


2. Approval of Information System’s request to transfer $6,000 from the
department’s GIS Project Budget to its FY2011 GIS Maintenance and
Operations (M&O) Budget.


3. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office’s recommendations to declare a 2006
Dodge Charger unserviceable, to sale or trade the vehicle, and to
authorize appropriate staff to purchase a comparable vehicle and to
sign all necessary documents required for the purchase, registration
and tagging of the vehicle.


4. Approval of the Sheriff’s Office’s request to amend the Overtime
Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office Investigations Division
by $2,985.80 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with
various Federal Agencies.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Jack Smith, Chairman


Herb Frady, Vice Chairman
Lee Hearn


Robert Horgan
Eric Maxwell


i


STAFF
Jack Krakeel, County Administrator
Scott Bennett, County Attorney


Carol Chandler, Executive Assistant
Karen Morley, Chief Deputy Clerk


Floyd Jones, Deputy Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
September 9, 2010
Page Number 2


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to increase the Library’s SPLOST Account by $25.00 and to
increase the Other Supplies and Software Maintenance Accounts by an accumulative total of $2,000
in order to account for two donations to the Fayette County Public Library in an aggregate amount of
$2,025.00.


OLD BUSINESS:


C. Approval of the August 4, 2010 Board of Commissioners Workshop Minutes.  Commissioners Robert
Horgan and Eric Maxwell were not present for this Workshop Meeting.


D. Approval of the August 26, 2010 Board of Commissioners Minutes.  Chairman Jack Smith was not
present this meeting.


NEW BUSINESS:


E. Consideration of a request from Peachtree City that the County participate in a scoping study related
to the widening and intersection improvements on Crosstown Road.


F. Consideration of staff’s request to authorize the Chairman to sign the Summary of Material
Modification and Amendment #1 agreement between Fayette County and Meritain amending the
County’s Employee’s Health Insurance Plan by including a “Carry Over Provision” and by increasing
the number of days the plan will pay for a stay at specified types of care facilities.


G. Consideration of a Joint Funding Agreement between Fayette County and the U.S. Department of the
Interior Geological Survey which provides for the monitoring of water flow at four sites.  The
Agreement is for one year beginning October 1, 2010 and ending September 30, 2011 with a cost to
the County of $90,600.00.


H. Consideration of the Recreation Commission’s recommendations pertaining to the placement of gates
and fencing at Kenwood Park, and to discuss parking and pay stations at the park.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT
ATTORNEY’S REPORT
STAFF REPORTS
BOARD REPORTS
EXECUTIVE SESSION


ADJOURNMENT








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Jack Krakeel 


Consideration of a request from Peachtree City that the County participate in a scoping study related to widening and intersection 
improvements on Crosstown Road.


Peachtree City is evaluating a project that involves the possible widening of portions of Crosstown Road and intersection improvements 
to the intersection of Crosstown Road and Peachtree Parkway. This project was approved as a 2004 Special Purpose Local Option Sales 
Tax project and is listed in the 2003 Countywide Transportation Plan. 
 
The City has requested that the County assist them with the cost of a study to update the scope of the project. The cost to the County is 
approximately $26,000.00 and would be paid from existing SPLOST proceeds.


Hear details about the City's request and determine whether or not the County will participate in the scoping study. Provide direction to 
the County Administrator on how to proceed. 


If funded, the County's portion of the study will be paid from existing 2005 SPLOST proceeds.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, September 9, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Board of Commissioners Carol Chandler


Proclamation recognizing September 15, 2010 as "Honor Flight Fayette Day".


Gail Sparrow, President of Honor Flight Fayette, and Mrs. Brenda Smith have organized another flight of World War II veterans to 


Washington, D.C. on September 15, 2010, in an effort to allow the veterans to view their War Memorial.  Since 2008, Honor Flight 


Fayette has provided six previous trips to the nation's capitol.  This is the seventh and final flight.  When this seventh flight is complete, 


Honor Flight Fayette will have provided this opportunity to approximately 490 veterans.  The veterans will be assisted by about 40  


"guardians" who will attend to the veterans' needs as they journey to and from Washington, D.C. 


 


Mrs. Sparrow and Mrs. Smith are asking that Fayette County once again honor the World War II veterans by proclaiming September 15, 


2010 as "Honor Flight Fayette Day". 


 


The proclamations presented by the Board of Commissioners are framed and used as part of a display for the "send off" events for 


veterans on the morning of their flights. 


 


AT THIS TIME, THIS IS BELIEVED TO BE THE LAST HONOR FLIGHT TRIP TO WASHINGTON.


Present proclamation declaring September 15, 2010 as "Honor Flight Fayette Day".


No funding is required for this request.


Yes Periodically


No


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, September 9, 2010







PROCLAMATION 


“HONOR FLIGHT FAYETTE DAY” 
 
Whereas, Honor Flight Fayette Foundation, Inc. is a non-profit organization created to recognize and pay homage to 


our local World War II Veterans in appreciation for their great sacrifices and faithful service to our County; 
and 


 
Whereas, Honor Flight Fayette is part of the National Honor Flight Network which was founded in 2004 to honor 


Veterans throughout America, with their primary goal to fly veterans to Washington, D.C. to visit their War 
Memorial, particularly Word War II Veterans; and 


 
Whereas, Because Honor Flight recognizes that our nation is losing World War II veterans at a rate of 1,200 per day 


and that sadly most of them will never have had the opportunity to visit their National Monument in 
Washington because it was not built until 2004, Honor Flight has taken on the urgent mission of honoring 
local World War II Veterans by providing them cost-free flights to visit their National Memorial; and 


 
Whereas, On September 15 ,2010, Honor Flight will host its seventh and last flight to Washington, providing 70 more 


veterans of the greatest generation with an opportunity to visit the National World War II Memorial and to 
spend the day as “Guests of Honor”, and to talk and share memories of service and sacrifice for our Great 
Nation; 


 
Now, therefore, we, the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, are hereby proud to proclaim September 15, 2010, 


 


“HONOR FLIGHT FAYETTE DAY” 


 


And in doing so we thank the founders of Honor Flight Fayette who selflessly initiated this effort that will mean, and has meant, 
so much to so many in our community; and further, though words cannot adequately express the gratitude, admiration, and 
respect we hold for the Veterans who will participate in this history-making seventh and final flight to Washington on September 
15, 2010, we wish this band of brothers and sisters a day of camaraderie, sharing, and tribute in recognition of a willingness to 
serve and sacrifice those many years ago that protected our Homeland, preserved our freedom, and reinforced America’s 
position as the Greatest Nation in all the World. 
 


So proclaimed this 9th day of September, 2010 by the 


 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 
 
 


__________________________ 
Jack R. Smith, Chairman 





		Commissioners- Honor Flight Proclamation Agenda Request File.pdf

		Commissioners- Honor Flight Proclamation Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Extension Office Craig Gross


Recognition of the Fayette County 4-H Shooting Sports members and coaches and recognition for their many accomplishments during 


the past year, including winning the State Academics, Integrity and Markmanship (AIM) Trap Shoot.


The Fayette County 4-H Shooting Sports Shotgun Club has returned again to the winner’s circle! Their latest accomplishment - winning 


the Sub-Jr. A.I.M. (Academics, Integrity and  Marksmanship) Georgia State Shoot. 


 


The Fayette County 4-H Shooting Sports Shotgun Program is composed of middle and high school aged members who practice and host 


competitive shoots at the Fayette County 4-H Range located on South Highway 85. The range is equipped with an American Trap field, a 


Skeet field, modified trap and a 5-stand field. The program is led by volunteer coaches who are certified in the Georgia 4-H S.A.F.E. 


Shooting Awareness, Fun, and Education Program Curriculum. Many of the coaches are also NRA certified leaders. 


 


Members of this year’s program have had accomplishments and are looking to build upon this year’s successes for an even more 


successful 2011!  


 


The Shooting Sports Program began in 1992. 


Recognition for a job well done and for representing Fayette County in the district, state and national level.


Not Applicable.


Yes January 2009


No


Yes


No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, September 9, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Connie  Boehnke


Approval of Human Resources' request to amend the Human Resources FY 2010 Technical Services Budget Account by $3,000 to 


reflect a contribution from GEBCorp to assist the County with a computer data interface project. 


On January 6, 2010, the Board authorized the Chairman to execute an agreement known as the GEBCorp Deduction Mag Media Format, 


between Fayette County and Tyler Technologies in the amount of $6,000 for the purpose of modifying the County's payroll and 


accounting software. This software modification enables Fayette County to transmit employee retirement files to GEBCorp for each 


payroll that is processed using MUNIS and it would detail employee's withholdings and the employer's share pertaining to the Defined 


Benefits Retirement plan. 


 


GEBCorp agreed to pay $3,000, half of the total project cost of $6,000. This request reflects the change in the county's budget to account 


for the contribution made by GEBCorp.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the HR Technical Services FY2010 Budget by $3,000 for the contribution from 


GEBCorp to help fund the payroll data interface project.


See details above.


Yes Wednesday, January 6, 2010


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 9, 2010







Workshop Minutes
January 6, 2010
Page 5


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT


GEBCorp Deduction Mag Media Format: County Administrator Jack Krakeel requested authorization for the Chairman to
sign an agreement, known as the GEBCorp Deduction Mag Media Format, between Fayette County and Tyler Technologies
in the amount of $6,000 for the purpose of modifying the County’s payroll and accounting software enabling Fayette County
to transmit employee retirement files to GEBCorp for each payroll processed in MUNIS that would detail employee
withholdings and the employer’s share pertaining to the Defined Benefits Retirement Plan.  Commissioner Maxwell told the
Board he was not prepared to vote for the request since he did not have enough information, since he did not originally vote
for the particular vendor, and since he had concern about moving forward at this point in time.  Discussion followed. 


Commissioner Horgan moved to authorize the Chairman to sign the amendment to the Tyler Technologies contract at a cost
of $6,000 allowing a modification to the County’s payroll and accounting software in order to transmit Defined Benefits
retirement data to GEBCorp.  Commissioner Frady seconded the motion. The motion passed 4-1 with Commissioner Maxwell
voting in opposition.  A copy of the agreement between Fayette County and Tyler Technologies, identified as “Attachment
17", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.





		Human Resources- GEBCorp Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources- GEBCorp Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Human Resources Connie Boehnke


Consideration of staff's request to authorize the Chairman to sign the Summary of Material Modification and Amendment #1 agreement 


between Fayette County and Meritain amending the County's Employee's Health Insurance Plan by including a "Carry Over Provision" 


and by increasing the number of days the plan will pay for a stay at specified types of care facilities.


On March 11, 2010, Fayette County changed its employee health benefit from a "fully insured plan" to a "self insured" plan.  The County 


engaged the services of Meritain Health as its Third Party Administrator, and used Assurant to provide employee life insurance as well as 


short and long term disability benefits.  This change was based, in part, after Blue Cross / Blue Shield notified Fayette County it could 


expect a 23% increase in premiums in the upcoming year. 


 


Since the change has been enacted, staff has discovered that the agreement with Meritain should be amended to include a "Carry Over 


Provision"  since the provision was part of the last Blue Cross / Blue Shield contract.  As the challenge was to match the 2009 in-force 


BCBS contract, this verbiage is needed to administer the plan on a go-forward basis. 


 


A second amendment that is requested pertains to the Skilled Nursing, Extended Care Facility and Rehabilitation Facilities benefit.  The 


previous provider's Plan Document provided a 30 day calendar year maximum benefit, however it has been proposed by staff to increase 


the benefit to a 60 day maximum benefit.


Authorization for the Chairman to sign the Summary of Material Modification and Amendment #1 agreement between Fayette County and 


Meritain.


Not Applicable.


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, September 9, 2010







 


  Page 1 


    


Fayette county Board of Commissioners 


 


 


Points to consider August 30, 2010


    
 


I.  First item of Plan Amendment – Carry Over Provision needed to be added as this 
was discovered to be part of the BCBS contract after the installation process had 
been completed.  This deductible carry over provision according to BCBS was a 
part of their HMO even though we (Pacific General Financial and Meritain 
Installation Team) could not find the contract wording within the Certificate of 
Coverage (COC) provided by BCBS for the HMO plan.  Their team had provided an 
email clarification to us and we were able to locate within the Point of Service COC.  
As the challenge was to match the 2009 in force BCBS contract, this verbiage is 
needed to administer the plan going forward. 


 
 
II. Second item of Plan Amendment – Skilled Nursing, Extended Care Facility 
and Rehabilitation Facilities benefit.  Currently the BCBS contract and the 
Plan Document are a 30 day calendar year maximum.  It is proposed to amend the 
plan to a 60 day calendar year maximum. 


 
Currently approximately 60% of Meritain’s government based clients have 60 day 
calendar year maximum (cym) ; about 28% have 90 day calendar year maximum 
and the remaining have a 30 day calendar year maximum. 
 
A consideration with increasing the calendar year maximum by an additional 30 
days, is that there are certain safe guards in place to protect the Plan from over 
utilization and these are outlined as follows: 


 
Meritain Health addresses these matters through their URAC-accredited Utilization 
Management (UM) program. Their teams include highly specialized board certified 
physicians and registered nurses who possess multiple years of specialized clinical 
experience. Their goal is to attain the best patient outcomes while ensuring that 
opportunities for cost savings are maximized. The result: patients in the UM program 
receive effective care in appropriate settings for the right length of time. 


 
Admission Criteria is the first step within the UM process… pre-determining the 
medical necessity and anticipated outcomes of proposed treatment plans.  They refer 
to this process as Admission Evaluation and Review.  Cases are benchmarked against 
Milliman’s Days/1,000, Admits/1,000 and Average Length of Stay criteria. These 
criteria are broadly accepted and utilized throughout the medical insurance industry. 


 
Concurrent Review – Once treatment begins, Meritain Health facilitates concurrent 
review—that is the process of guiding the patient’s progress to ensure continued 
quality and appropriateness of care. At that point, the focus becomes moving patients 







 


  Page 2 


along a continuum from acute care in a hospital setting to a lower level of care and 
ultimately restored health.   
 
While a patient within Skilled Nursing, Extended Care or Rehabilitation facility, the 
Concurrent Review process is conducted (on a rolling weekly bases). As part of the 
Utilization Management process Meritain utilizes a proprietary software program called 
i-Suite.  This program:   
 


• Places the patient at the center of all activities.   
 


• Integrates all patient information, allowing coordination and monitoring of 
activities no matter where patients are in the care continuum. 


 


• Supports flexibility, customization and integration of clinical rules with an 
employer’s unique business objectives. 


 


• Identifies and manages clinical risks through real-time reporting capabilities. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Jacqueline M. Turner, Account Executive 
Pacific General Underwriters of Georgia, Inc. 













		Human Resources- Health Insurance Plan Agenda Request File.pdf

		Human Resources- Health Insurance Plan Backup

		Human Resources- Health Insurance Plan Backup1.pdf

		Human Resources- Health Insurance Backup2








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Information Systems Russell Prince


Approval of Information System's request to transfer $6,000 from the department's GIS Project Budget to its FY2011 GIS Maintenance 
and Operations (M&O) Budget. 


The Geographic Information System (GIS) Web Site Maintenance annual renewal is due.  The current capital project has remaining 
funds available for this expense.  However, maintenance items can not be funded from capital projects and thus it is being requested 
that the Board approve a transfer of $6,000 from the GIS Project account  (37210535-523700-P6028) to the FY 2011 GIS M&O account 
(10010535-521316). 
 
 


Approval of Information System's request to transfer $6,000 from the department's GIS Project account (37210535-523700-P6028) to its 
FY 2011 GIS M&O account (10010535-521316).


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 9, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Library Chris Snell


Approval of staff's recommendation to increase the Library's SPLOST Account by $25.00  and to increase the Other Supplies and 
Software Maintenance Accounts by an accumulative total of $2,000 in order to account for two donations to the Fayette County Public 
Library in an aggregate amount of $2,025.00.


John C. and Sara S. Slaton have donated $25.00 to the Fayette County Public Library to purchase a book in memory of Mr. John 
Hallwood. 
 
Mr. Royal L. Yates, Sr. has also donated $2,000.00 to the Fayette County Public Library.  This $2,000 donation will be used to purchase 
an Optoma PRO350W DLP Multimedia Projector for $750.00, an ECO Disc Repair supplies kit for $300.00 that will be used for the 
maintenance of the ECO cleaning machine that cleans the Library's CDs and DVDs.  The remaining $950.00 will be applied to the 
purchase of a computer for the Children's department as well as to purchase a monitor. 


Approval to accept donations in the aggregate amount of $2,025.


Not Applicable.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 9, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Parks and Recreation Anita Godbee


Consideration of the Recreation Commission's recommendations pertaining to the placement of gates and fencing at Kenwood Park, and 


to discuss parking and pay stations at the park.


On October 6, 2007, Phase I of Kenwood Park opened to the general public.  Since its opening, the park has been enjoyed by many 


patrons.  During this time, however, issues have arisen regarding vehicles entering the park after hours. Since Kenwood Park is a 


passive park, the Recreation Commission has recommended that an entrance gate be installed and all access points outside of the main 


entrance be closed off for security reasons and to keep vehicles from entering the park after hours.  Options regarding the types of 


available gates are described in the supporting documentation. 


 


Other security issues involving adjacent property owners have also arisen since the park opened.  In order to reduce the security 


concerns, the Recreation Commission has recommended installing a fence alongside the park's and adjacent property owners' property 


lines.  It should be noted that fencing in the entire park is not being recommended.  Options regarding the types of available fencing are 


described in the supporting documentation. 


 


The Recreation Commission is aware that parking and pay stations at Kenwood Park are  ongoing issues.  The Commission, therefore, is 


seeking formal direction from the Board of Commissioners pertaining to this issue before it proceeds further.


Approval of the Recreation Commission's recommendations pertaining to the placement of gates and fencing at Kenwood Park, and for 


this recommendation to specify the types of gates and fences desired.  Secondly, the Recreation Commission requests discussion on 


how to proceed with the issue of parking and pay stations at Kenwood Park.


Funds are requested to come from the Parks and Recreation Department's CIP budget designated for Kenwood Park.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, September 9, 2010













		Recreation- Gates and Fencing Agenda Request File.pdf

		Recreation- Gates and Fencing Backup






COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker


Approval of the Sheriff's Office's recommendation to declare a 2006 Dodge Charger unserviceable, to sale or to trade the vehicle, and to 


authorize appropriate staff to purchase a comparable vehicle and to sign all necessary documents required for the purchase, registration, 


and tagging of the vehicle.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office is requesting to dispose of one 2006 Dodge Charger that has high mileage and has outlived its 


usefulness with the Sheriff's Office.  This disposal will consist of the vehicle being either sold or traded.  The Dodge was purchased with 


Federal Seizure Funds and any proceeds from the sale or trade of this vehicle must be placed into the originating funds to be used for 


law enforcement purposes.  This vehicle will be traded in the purchase of one comparable vehicle which will require the authorization to 


sign the necessary registration, tag and title paperwork.


Approval of the Sheriff's decision  to declare a 2006 Dodge Charger unserviceable, to authorize the Sheriff to trade or sell said vehicle, 


and to authorize the Sheriff to purchase a comparable vehicle and sign all necessary documents related to the purchase.


Federal Seizure Funds will be utilized for this purchase.


No


No


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 9, 2010





		Sheriff- Charger Disposal Agenda Request File.pdf

		Sheriff- Charger Disposal Backup










COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Sheriff's Office Captain Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of the Sheriff's Office's request to amend the Overtime Budget for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations 
Division by $2,985.82 for reimbursement for employees assigned to work with various Federal Agencies.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal Investigations Division receives monies for reimbursement of overtime funds from various 
federal programs for personnel assigned to work investigations in cooperation with these agencies.


Authorization from the Board of Commissioners to amend the Overtime Budget Account for the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Criminal 
Investigations Division (10030321-511300) by $2,985.82 which has been received from various federal programs for the 2010-2011 
Fiscal Year.  This would revise the Overtime Regular Budget Account to $115,940.59.


No funding is required for this request.


No


No


Yes


No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentThursday, September 9, 2010








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Water System Tony Parrott


Consideration of a Joint Funding Agreement between Fayette County and the U.S Department of the Interior Geological Survey which 


provides for the monitoring of water flow at four sites. The Agreement is for one year beginning October 1, 2010 and ending September 


30, 2011 with a cost to the County of $90,600.00.


The Georgia Department of Natural Resources requires that  our Water System (and all others) monitor the flow of water in our raw water 


sources, below where Fayette County takes out water for storage, treatment and distribution. The U.S. Geological Survey, Water 


Resources Division, performs this type of work, so Fayette County contracts with USGS for their services. Some sites are also monitored 


for water quality. There are four "monitoring stations" at locations on the Flint River, two on Line Creek, and one on Shoal Creek. 


Monitoring ensures adequate water flow below the County's facilities. The volume of water in a stream effects plant and animal life. 


 


The cost of the monitoring this year is $ 90,600.00. These funds are budgeted annually in the Water System's operating budget.


Authorization to enter into the Agreement with USGS for the annual monitoring of the Flint River, two sites on Line Creek and Shoal 


Creek.


These funds are budgeted annually in the Water System's Maintenance and Operations Budget


Yes Last year


Yes


Yes


Yes


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


New BusinessThursday, September 9, 2010





























		Water System- USGA Monitoring Agenda Request File.pdf

		Water System- USGA Monitoring Backup







